BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | sl's LA

Est. 1927
November 14, 2025

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman
FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Executive Directo@
SUBJECT: November 20, 2025 Park Board Meeting Packet and Overview

Commissioners:

Enclosed you will find the overview and packet of information for the Park Board meeting on
November 20, 2025 at 5:15 pm at the Tom Baker Meeting Room.

Item 1. Call Meeting to Order and Roll Call

Item 2. Pledge of Allegiance

Item 3. Approve Agenda

Item 4. Featured Partners and Programs — BisMarket
Lindsay Junge, Operations Manager with BisMarket, will appear before the
Board.

Item 5. Consideration of Request to Continue Management of Burleigh County Parks

Included in the packet you will find a proposed agreement for consideration.
Burleigh County Commissioner Wayne Munson will appear before the Board.

Item 6. Disposition of Bids
e Sanitary Sewer System in Sertoma Park — Please see the attached memo
from Susan Hazelett with Apex Engineering Group
e Riverwood Golf Course Concessions — Facilities and Programs Director Mike
Wald has provided a summary of the bids and proposed agreement for your
consideration.

Item 7. Consideration of Human Resource Policy and Procedure Handbook Updates
Administrative Services Manager Julie Fornshell will review the proposed
updates for this handbook for consideration.

Item 8. Consent Agenda
A variety of items have been placed in a consent agenda. A consent agenda can
be approved with one motion, or an item or items can be removed for additional
discussion and separate action. Staff recommends approval of the following
items:

A nationally accredifed park and vecreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P: (701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



e Consideration of October 16, 2025 Board Meeting Minutes-The minutes are
included for your review.

e Consider Accepting Land Donation from Silbernagel Family/Silver Ranch 18,
LLP-Included in the packet is a letter from Silbernagel Family/Silver Ranch 18,
LLP asking the Park District to accept a donation of lot 27, block 3, Silver
Ranch Fifth Addition (approximately 5.85 acres). The letter outlines how the
land would be developed and used, and the maps provide details of the
location.

e Consideration of SuperSlide Extension Addendum-The SuperSlide owners
have provided a letter confirming their intention to continue their agreement
to operate the SuperSlide Amusement Park within Sertoma Park for years six
through ten. The proposed operation addendum is also included for your
review and approval.

e Request Authorization to Select Consultants for 2026 Projects-Please see the
memo in the packet regarding this request.

e Request Board Authorization to Call for Portable Toilet Bids-Operations
Director David Mayer has provided a memo requesting authorization to call
for bids.

e Consideration to Approve Consultant for General Sibley Park Day Use Area
Road Project Consultant-Included in your packet is the consultant selection
agreement with KU for this project. The Park District has received funding of
up to $300,00 from the Special Road Fund program to assist with this project,
and the Park District needs to match 40% of the total project funds. It has
been budgeted for 2026, and the proposed project will provide an asphalt
overlay of the existing roadways, parking and boat ramp area within the day
use portion of General Sibley Park.

Item 9. Approval of Bills

Individuals or organizations who wish to appear before the Board on an existing agenda item will also make the
request in writing or emailed, delivered to the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District office by 12:00 noon, 2 days
prior to the regular monthly meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners.

Next Regular Board Meeting: December 18, 2025 at 5:15 pm in the Tom Baker Meeting Room



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | ot's Play:
Est. 1927

November 12, 2025

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Redmann, Jeske and President Zimmerman
FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director@
RE: Burleigh County Parks Management Agreement

Commissioners:

Burleigh County Commissioner Wayne Munson has requested to appear before the Park Board to
renew the agreement between Bismarck Parks and Recreation District and Burleigh County for the
Park District to manage Burleigh County Parks. The new agreement, if approved, would run from
January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2035.

A draft agreement is included for your review. Changes to the original agreement which are
included in this proposed agreement are as follows:

1. The dates of the agreement were adjusted accordingly.

2. The addition of Driscoll Sibley Park to the management agreement. The attachmentwas
updated to reflect this also.

3. The original agreement also included an addendum to further clarify the various parcel ID
numbers which were notincluded in the original agreement. This proposed agreement has
this information listed correctly.

4. The fees remain the same.

A nationally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



Agreement for the Maintenance, Operations, and Management
Of Specified Burleigh County Parks

This agreement is made between Burleigh County Board of Park Commissioners, whose address
is 221 N 5 St, Bismarck, ND 58501, hereinafter “County”, and the Park District of the city of
Bismarck, North Dakota , whose address is 400 East Front Avenue, Bismarck, ND, 58504,
hereinafter “Park District”.

Whereas, the County is interested in obtaining maintenance, operation, management, planning
and development services for specified Burleigh County parks and the Mlssour1 Valley Complex
hereinafter known as “County Parks”; and it

Whereas, Park District is in a position to provide mamtenance operatlon management planning
and development services for County Parks; and ( \

Whereas the specified County Parks shall be:
e Boat Ramps: ‘
o Steckel Park — Near Wilton & the north Burle1gh county lme
o Khneifel Boat Ramp — near Misty Waters '
o Kimball Bottoms — “The Desert”
o MacLean Bottoms — the “Rifle Range”

1311
141,
i}

111 ¥
ol;

e Park Areas: ‘;:
o Swenson Park — Hwy. 1804 at Apple Creek below the Unlvers1ty of Mary
o Diriscoll Slbley Park 2 miles west of Driscoll

e Missouri Valley Complex (F arrgrounds) Blsmarck Expressway and Highway 10, less the
following real property i i

e Parcel ID:| 1990 001 700 n Lot S1xteen (16) Block One (1), Missouri Valley Complex
Addmon to the C1ty of Blsmarck Burle1gh County, North Dakota, (Buckstop Junction)
r fand

o Parcel 1D: 1990- 001 000 in Lot One (1), Block One (1), Missouri Valley Complex
Addmon to the City lof Bismarck, Burleigh County, North Dakota, (Burleigh County
Detention Center) and

e Parcel ID: 1990 001 500 in Lot Three (3), Block One (1), Missouri Valley Complex
Addition to the C1ty of Bismarck, Burleigh County, North Dakota, (DOT) and

e Parcel ID: 1990-001-600 in Lot Six (6) , Block One (1), Missouri Valley Complex
Addition to the City of Bismarck, Burleigh County, North Dakota, (City of Bismarck
Waste Water Utility).

See Exhibit A for park locations



Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, it is agreed as follows:

1.

Scope of Services: The County Park Board and Park District agree that Park District,
through its designated and employed staff (hereinafter staff), shall furnish services to and
for the benefit of the County by providing management and operational services for County
Parks as defined in this agreement. Included in the scope of services would be the
development and implementation of plans which may include operational plans, master
plans and strategic planning in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.
County agrees to cover all costs of the services of any third party who may be contracted
to develop a master plan for county parks. Park District assumes! the obligation to provide
such services through its staff consistent with the terms of this agreement in compliance of
established professional standards. In furtherance, but not in limitation of the scope of
services designated herein, such duties, obligations and respons1b1l1t1es shall include the

following: T i

a. Park District shall require its staff prov1d1ng services under the prov1s1ons of this
agreement to comply with any and all/policies andiprocedures Wh1ch are developed
through the joint efforts of the parties relatmg to,and, concerning the provision of
operational services for County Parks and the 1mplementat1on of any developed and
approved plans for future development of the areas as dlrected by and in coordination
with the County. Wi, «Lg .

b. Park District shall be solely reep‘onSible‘for the selection, retention, supervision and
compensatlon of all designated Pa.rk D1str1ct employees or staff engaged by the Park

.....

(((((((( l_g V““‘i~~<<

d.. aPark D1stnct shall be respon51ble for

i. Mamtalnmg County Parks within the accepted practices of grounds
maintenance to include mowing, weed control, forestry services, public

|, safety, cleaning of toilets, boat ramp maintenance, and other facilities

1]y, including permanent and temporary structures and shelters;

ii.';ll?;lfovizding knowledgeable and professionally trained staff;

1il. 1Keeping buildings and structures in good repair and upkeep to include
painting and cleaning;

iv. Establishing garbage systems and hauling of refuse for proper disposal;

v. Developing of fees and budget (personnel, utilities, supplies, repairs and
maintenance, contract services, equipment and capital improvements) for



approval by the County in accordance with an agreed-upon timeline and
budget process;

vi. Overseeing and planning of marketing and promotional efforts of County
Parks and programs and public information related to management and
operations of County Parks;

vii. Developing and overseeing capital improvement projects, master plan, and
non-engineered construction management, with a 5% management fee
based upon actual construction costs, subject to the County s approval and
funding of such projects; L

viii. Preparing a capital improvement and,;equiprnentkschedule that would be
developed and reviewed during the annual budget \prbC€SS'

ix. Managing the bidding process;, and current and future leases contracts and
rental agreements of County Parks. 'The Park Dlstrlct will provide
recommendations to the County 'on current contracts, leases and rental
agreements for the County’s cons1derat10n and final approval

x. Collecting all fees‘,{donations, contributlions and other revenues generated
from the use and for the beneﬁt of the County, and County Parks.

xi. External revenue generatron from sponsorshrps grants, donations, etc.,
1nclud1ng grant admrnrstratlon '

xii, fOther dutles as agreed upon by the partles to this agreement.

2. Communication: Park D1str1ct shall de51gnate its Executive Director, or other designee
as the,primary, contact o work with'a County Board member or members as designated by
the County Park District’s Executlve Director or designee shall attend all meetings of the

Burle1gh County Park Board and other meetlngs as needed Regular communications shall

malntenance act1V1tles and other issues of mutual interest. On-going communrcatlons shall
occur rega:rdlng plannmg Park District shall work cooperatively with the County in master
planning' existing s1tes and planning for the development of new properties and facilities.
Park District will oversee the request for proposals for master plan and assess a five percent
(5%) fee for thrs superv151on County will cover all costs of the master plan development.

3. Existing Agreements. This contract shall replace all existing oral agreements, leases,
and memorandums of agreement and contracts between the County and Park District
related to the County Parks covered by this agreement. Parties acknowledge that this
agreement does not replace or alter other agreements between the County and Park
District concerning other properties or subject matters.

4. Funding. The County is responsible for funding the annual approved operation,
maintenance and capital improvement budgets for County Parks.

3



In the event of an emergency or if a need for an enhancement arises that was not planned
for in the budget, Park District has the right to appear before the County Park Board for
funds directly related to the emergency or enhancement.

Park District shall submit an annual work plan and budget to the County Park Board and
County Commission to be approved during each organization’s annual budgeting
process. The general concepts of the work plan and budget must be approved in theory
prior to August 15" of each year with the final budget approval in September of the same
year. Al
Compensation. The County shall pay Park District a management fee of 25% based
upon actual gross operating expenses for administratiye services provrded under this
contract, excluding all capital improvements and plannlng pr0Jects as set forth in Section
1(d. vii) of this agreement. I L L

Reimbursement. Park District shall submit : a monthly statement of expenses incurred.
County shall remit payment within 60 days. Park D1strlct will provide an annual
statement of revenues generated for the operation of} County Parks to the County. Park
District will submit a check for these revenues to the! County within 30 days of the year’s
end. All expense items are subj ect to llmltatlons as set forth as a part of the County’s
normal budgeting process. ‘ | i

Relationship of Parties: This agreement shall not be construed to create any form of
any employment relat1onsh1p between the: County and Park District, or any person
designated by Park D1strlct under the provisions of this agreement. It is the intention of
the parties to; thls agreement to maintain separate and distinct organizations, and Park
District, through its desrgnated employees shall at all times be acting as an independent
contractor in provrdmg serv1ces to, and for the beneﬁt of County Parks. Park District

to or for the employees of all wages, salarles taxes, withholding payments, fees, as well
-as other benefits or compensatlon to any pension or retirement plans. Park District shall
" not/claim that the County is respon51ble for the payment of any of the foregoing
payments w1thhold1ngs, contributions, or taxes in relationship to its designated
employees

Further, it 1‘51understooid that this management relationship is between the County and
Park District and Park District has no other responsibility to report management duties or
operations, including budget and capital projects, or represent on behalf of the County
unless so approved by the County or agreed to by Park District.

Severability. The unenforceability or invalidity of any provision of this contract shall
not render any other provisions of this contract unenforceable or invalid.

Governing Law. This contract is to be governed by and construed according to the State
of North Dakota as well as applicable federal and local and federal laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations.




10. Insurance. County and Park District shall maintain in full force and effect during the
term of this agreement, at their own expense, general liability coverage. For Park
District, this includes liability coverage for any of its employees, contractors or
subcontractors designated to provide services under the terms of this agreement and shall
name the County as an additional insured.

11. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. Each party to this agreement shall be responsible
for the claims, losses, damages and expenses, which may arise out of the negligent or
wrongful acts or omissions of that party or that party’s! agents employees, or
representatives acting in the scope of their duties in this; contract Each party to this
agreement agrees to inform the other in the event such party isnotified of an investigation
or claim arising out of the services of managing County Parks under the terms and
conditions of this contract and shall provide reasonable access to the information involving
such investigation or claim. Each party shall further notrfy the other party of the disposition
of any such investigation or claim. Ay HIm

12. Contract Term. This agreement is for a per1od effectrve on the date 51gned by the last
party to sign the agreement through December 31, 2035

13. Termination of Agreement. The County or Park Drstrlct ‘may unilaterally terminate this
agreement upon written notice to the, other party 90 days prior;to'the budget deadline in
September of any given year. In the case'that’ the agreement is terminated, it is
understood that the termination of the agreement shall be effective on December 31 of

,,,,,,

days of termmatron date Either party may terminate this agreement for cause due to
breach of agreement Such terrnmatlon shall be preceded by a sixty (60) day written
notice to the breachmg party If the breachmg party fails to remedy the breach within 60
days of receipt of notice, the non—breachrng party shall have the right to terminate the
agreement at the end of 60 days ]

14.;Law Enforcement Auth0r1ty Park District shall contact the following Law Enforcement
"””Author1t1es when the need arlses

o M1ssour1 Valley Complex The City of Bismarck Police Department

The Burle1gh County Shemff’ s Department shall be contacted for the following;:
o Steckel Park/Boat Ramp
o Kneifel/'Boat Ramp
o Kimbeall Bottoms “The Desert”
o MacLean Bottoms “The Rifle Range”
o Driscoll Sibley Park

State law will be enforced as stated in the North Dakota Century Code by the Burleigh
County Sherriff’s Department.

17. Attorney’s Fees and Costs. Each party shall pay their own attorney’s fees and costs.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract as of the day, month and year
written below, and each party hereby acknowledges that it has the full right and authority to enter
into this contract and bind the respective party to the terms stated herein.

Mark Zimmerman, President Date
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District

Park Board

Brian Bittner, Chairperson Défg A
Burleigh County (i, 2

County Commission

RREE TS




Exhibit A

/

o0
LA

Y DM oy

; -
!
!
'
1
]
L L
i
e
Ay o Nuotq
!
¢
i
5
i
I
i
i
' B
i
i
, )
. =
: : \v-\\\
|
1
I
!
i
i

[l -

= At

s NGHY

HO RN

ZIM AL

-
=

\1’

O,

il

|
l
|
o

5
3
uy,

GBS

IBLAISI UCHI03403Y
PUL S YoI85iG

Ag JuswabBousiy

i

Sy
Ajunen ybialung




P\
Apex—

Engineering Group 600 South 2" Street — Suite 145

Water | Transportation| Municipal | Facilities Bismarck, ND 58504

November 12, 2025

Mr. Kevin Klipfel — Executive Director
Bismarck Parks and Recreation

400 E Front Ave.

Bismarck, ND 58504

Re: Sertoma Park Restroom Improvements
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
Bismarck, North Dakota

Dear Mr. Klipfel:

The bid opening was November 12, 2025. No bids were received. During the advertising
period, several questions were received from contractors, but no contractor submitted a bid.
At this time, it is unknown why no bids were received. Apex will work with District personnel
to discover why no bids were received and explore various alternatives for moving this project
forward.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to call me at 701-224.3101.

Sincerely,

Susan Hazelett, PE
Apex Engineering Group, Inc.

Cc: File




BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | et's PI2y:

Est. 1927
DATE: November 12, 2025
TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman
Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director
FROM: Mike Wald, Facilities and Programs Directo@
RE: Riverwood Golf Course Concession Bids

We opened three bids for Riverwood Golf Course concessions on September 23, 2025. The bids were from
MK Events, Bismarck Food Service, and Dirty Bean LLC-Classic Rock Cafe. We interviewed the top two, the
Bismarck Food Service and the Dirty Bean LLC-Classic Rock Café on November 6, 2025 to discuss their plans
to service the golf course. The minimum sales percentage for food and beverage sales (excluding vending
machines and alcoholic beverages) after local and state sales tax was set at 15% . Dirty Bean LLC-Classic
Rock Café bid 23% and Bismarck Food Service bid 22.2%. The minimum rent payment for the bid was
$8,800. Dirty Bean LLC-Classic Rock Café submitted an amount of $28,500 each year and Bismarck Food
Service submitted an amount of $27,000 each year (see attached page for details).

After reviewing the rent and sales percentages and interviewing the two vendors, staff recommends the
Board accept the bid provided by Dirty Bean LLC-Classic Rock Café for the 2026 and 2027 golf seasons along
with the proposed agreement which is included in the packet. If you have any questions, please feel free to

contact me.

A nationally accredifed park and rvecreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



Bid Summary
Concession Operations
Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at 2:00 p.m.
Riverwood Golf Course

Minimum Monthly Rent Can Meet
Vendor 15% Minin\:um Montnly Rent Fropased Insurance
% Offered Month 2026,2027 2026 2027 Requirements
) May $1,250.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 yes
Bela):]rtl_yll-c_ June $2,100.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 '
Classic 23% July $2,100.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
Rock Cafe August | $2,100.00 | $8,000.00 $8,000.00
September | $1,250.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
TOTAL $8,800.00 | $28,500.00 | $28,500.00
Minimum Monthly Rent Can Meet
Vendor 15% Minin‘:um MonthlyiRent hroposed Insurance
% Offered Month 2026,2027 2026 2027 Requirements
May $1,250.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 yes
Bismarck June $2,100.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
Food 22.2% July $2,100.00 | $6,000.00 | $6,000.00
Service August $2,100.00 | $6,000.00 | $6,000.00
September $1,250.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
TOTAL $8,800.00 $27,000.00 | $27,000.00
Minimum Monthly Rent Can Meet
Vendor 15% Minirxum Monthly Rent Broposed Insurance
% Offered Month 2026,2027 2026 2027 Requirements
May $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,500.00 yes
June $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00
MK Events 15% July $2,100.00 | $2,100.00 | $2,100.00
August $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00
September $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00
TOTAL $8,800.00 $8,800.00 $8,800.00




10.

Concession Stand Agreement for
Riverwood Golf Course

Parties: The parties to the agreement are the Park District of the city of Bismarck, North
Dakota (herein after Park District), Bismarck, North Dakota, and Dirty Bean LLC, DBA
Classic Rock Café Kitchen, (herein after Concessionaire), Bismarck, North Dakota.

Purpose of this Agreement: This agreement will establish basic guidelines for the
Concessionaire to manage a concession stand in the Riverwood Golf Shop. The
Concessionaire will manage the concession stand in cooperation with the current exclusive
soft drink agreement between the Park District and its exclusive soft drink provider.

Length of Agreement: The Concessionaire will manage the concession stand operation at
said location April 1 - October 31 in years 2026 and 2027 with an option to add one
additional year (2028). The request to extend the agreement must be made in writing to the
Park District’s Facilities and Programs Director no later than October 1, 2027 for Board
action to follow at a later date. The Park District or the Concessionaire may terminate this
agreement upon 90-days written notice by either party.

Concession Location: Riverwood Golf Shop, 725 Riverwood Drive, Bismarck, ND 58504.

Concessions: A permanent concession stand will be available for use by the Concessionaire
in the Riverwood Golf Shop to operate said business. All food, soft drink, beer, box wine
and novelty drink sales will be part of concessions operation within the golf shop, on the
course, and for special events held on the course.

Concession Operation: The Concessionaire shall be responsible for the total operation of the
concession stand at said location to include staffing, stocking and selling of concession
supplies, and cleaning of concession stand and concession seating area. The concession
operation will include all selling of food and beverages to include sale of beer, box wine and
novelty drink sales (no glass containers) will be provided by concessionaire.

Concession Golf Carts: The Park District will provide two golf concession carts with
coolers for sale of concessions on the Riverwood Golf Course. The Park District will provide
maintenance and fuel. Any damage caused by the Concessionaire’s staff will be the
responsibility of the Concessionaire.

General Hours and Days of Operation: Hours will be set by mutual agreement with golf
course management. The concession schedule may change due to the golf schedule.
Changes to the concession hours will be cleared through the Golf Operations Manager.

Vending Machines: The Park District will have sole control of vending machines at
Riverwood Golf Shop.

Alcoholic Beverages: Beer, box wine and novelty drink sales (no glass containers) at
Riverwood will be provided by the concessionaire.



iy

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Exclusive Provider: The Park District has a contract with a vendor to provide supplies of
soda, juice, and water products in Park District facilities. Concessionaire must comply with
the Park District’s soft drink supply agreement. Concessionaire must purchase beverages
through the local exclusive soft drink supplier. This agreement does not allow the use of any
pre-mix or post-mix soda dispensing system.

Concession Fee: The Concessionaire will pay the Park District 23% of gross sales on food
and beverage concessions (excluding vending machines and alcoholic beverages) after local
and state sales tax in addition to a monthly rental fee. The monthly rental fee will begin in
May and is as follows:

Monthly rental fee 2026 2027
May 2026 and 2027 $1,500 $1,500
June 2026 and 2027 $3,000 $3,000
July 2026 and 2027 $8,000 $8,000
August 2026 and 2027 $8,000 $8,000
September 2026 and 2027 $8,000 $8,000

Payment Schedule: The concession payment is payable to the Park District on the 10% of
each month along with a detailed statement of receipts listing food and beverage separately.
Alcoholic beverage sales must be listed separately.

A processing fee (currently 3.3075%, subject to change) will be added to any payments
made with a credit card. Processing fees can be avoided by making payment by cash or
paper check.

Payment Election: Initial option below that will be applicable to the term of this
agreement.

Credit card payments — agreement fee plus processing fee
Cash or paper check payment — agreement fee

Concession Stand Area Clean Up: The Concessionaire will be responsible for cleanliness
and order of concession stand and counter, as well as general cleaning of tables in Riverwood
Golf Shop, and any outdoor tables. The Park District will provide garbage cans and removal
from premises.

Utilities: The Park District will pay utility costs for concession stand and vending machines.

Concession Employees: The Concessionaire shall provide adequate supervision of its
concession employees with employees dressed in a standard concession uniform or
identifiable shirt. All staff must be employees of the concessionaire. The Park District Golf
Operations Manager and Golf Shop Supervisors will be allowed to direct concession
employees if customers aren’t being served properly or area isn’t clean.

Concession Menu: The concession menu must be presented to the Executive Director of
Parks and Recreation along with prices prior to opening a concession stand. The Executive
Director must approve any changes to the menu in writing.

2



18.

19

20.

21,

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Keys: The Park District will not provide any keys to the Concessionaire for Riverwood Golf
Shop, as the Golf Shop will be open when the concession stand is open.

Concession Equipment: Equipment owned by the Park District will be the responsibility of
the Park District for major repairs and the Concessionaire will be responsible for their
equipment. The Concessionaire will be responsible for the general maintenance and cleaning
of all equipment in the concession stand.

Ordinances and Rules: The Concessionaire shall comply with all ordinances and rules
enacted by the Park District and state and local laws concerning the Riverwood Golf Shop
and Course (see Exhibit A for current Park District ordinances).

Property Damage: The Concessionaire agrees to pay, in addition to the regular concession
fee, any other costs for any damages sustained to the concession stand or grounds which is a
direct result of the Concessionaire employees or volunteers.

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance: Concessionaire, at its own expense, shall
secure and keep in force a comprehensive general liability insurance policy in the amount of
$1,000,000 per person and $2,000,000 per occurrence and name the Park District as an
additional insured. The policy shall contain product liability. The policy shall require the
insurance company to notify the Park District in writing prior to any cancellations.
Concessionaire shall annually provide the Park District with a certificate of insurance.

Liquor Liability: The Concessionaire shall maintain in force liquor liability (dram shop)
insurance with an occurrence limit of not less than $1,000,000 and name the Park District as
an additional insured. Coverage must be evidenced by a certificate of insurance prior to the
start of the contract and annually thereafter.

Property Insurance: Concessionaire may purchase renter’s insurance for its property.
Concessionaire understands that its property is not insured under any of Park District’s
insurance policies.

Building Insurance: The Park District will insure the buildings and contents owned by the
Park District.

Improvements: Concessionaire agrees to provide, at its own cost, all improvements to the
premises necessary for the operation of the concession stand. All improvements and
attractions shall be in compliance with plans and specifications provided by Concessionaire
and must receive prior written approval of the Park District.

Title to all non-removable improvements or fixtures shall vest in the Park District upon
completion of the improvements; however, Concessionaire shall maintain, repair, and
provide insurance on all improvements throughout the term of this agreement.

Workforce Safety and Insurance: The amount required by state law.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless: The Concessionaire agrees that it will fully
indemnify and hold harmless the Park District from all claims, actions, causes of actions,

3



29.

30.

lawsuits, etc. which may arise as a result of the Concessionaire’s management and operation
of the concession operation at the facility. This indemnification and hold harmless agreement
includes, but is not limited to, an agreement to indemnify and hold the Park District harmless
for all costs, expenses, damages, economic and non-economic losses as defined under North
Dakota law, including attorney’s fees, and any other consequences which may arise as a
result of the Concessionaire’s management and operation of the concession operation at the
facility. It is expressly understood that Concessionaire shall be responsible for full
indemnification to the Park District and will hold the Park District harmless from any and all
such claims.

Default: The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default by Concessionaire:

a). Abandonment and vacation of the premises during the contract year.

b). Failure to perform any other provisions of this agreement, if the failure to perform is
not cured within 10 days after notice has been given Concessionaire. If the default
cannot reasonably be cured within 10 days, Concessionaire shall not be in default of
this agreement if Concessionaire commences to cure the default within the 10-day
period and diligently and in good faith continues to cure the default.

c). Failure to maintain insurance coverage as required by the agreement shall be cause
for the immediate termination of the agreement.

d). Concessionaire files a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization
under the bankruptcy laws.

e). Involuntary proceedings are instituted against Concessionaire under any bankruptcy
act.

f). Concessionaire fails to pay any rent when due and does not make the delinquent
payment within five days after receipt of notice from the District.

g). Failure to maintain all required licenses and permits.

Remedies: In the event of default, the Park District shall give a written notice of default to
Concessionaire. Concessionaire shall have ten days after the receipt of such notice to cure
said default. No such notice shall be deemed a forfeiture or termination of this agreement
unless the Park District so elects in the notice. In the event Concessionaire does not cure the
said default within the allowed ten-day period, the Park District shall have the following
remedies. These remedies are not exclusive; they are in addition to any remedies now or
later allowed by law:

a.) The Park District can continue this agreement in full force and effect, and the
agreement will continue in effect as long as the Park District does not specifically
elect in writing to terminate this agreement on account of Concessionaire’s default.

b.) The Park District can terminate Concessionaire’s right to possession of the premises
at any time. No act by the Park District other than giving notice to Concessionaire
shall terminate this agreement.

c.) The Park District, at any time after Concessionaire commits default, can cure the
default at Concessionaire’s cost. If the Park District at any time, by reason of
Concessionaire’s default, pays any sum or does any act that requires the payment of
any sum, the sum paid by the Park District shall be immediately due from
Concessionaire to the Park District at the time the sum is paid, and if paid at a later
date shall bear interest at the rate of 18% per annum from the date the sum is paid by
the Park District until the Park District is reimbursed by Concessionaire. The sum
together with interest on it shall be additional rent.

4



31.

32.

33.

34.

35,

DATE:

DATE:

d.) In the event of default the Park District shall be entitled to recover for all amounts,
including attorney’s fees expended by the Park District on account of such default.

Notice: Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that either party
desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person shall be in writing and
either served personally or sent by prepaid, first class mail. Any notice, demand, consent,
approval, or communication that either desires or is required to give to the other party shall
be addressed to the other part at the address set forth in the signature blocks at the end of this
agreement. Either party may change its address by notifying the other party of the change of
address in writing.

Permits/Licenses: Concessionaire shall secure the proper permits and licenses from local
and state government to operate concession stands that sell food, soft drinks, beer and wine,
and provide copies to the Park District at contract signing and annually thereafter.

Non-Discrimination Policy: The Concessionaire shall not discriminate against any
applicant for employment, employee, or patron of the premises because of discrimination on
the basis of race, color, national origin, age, religion, sex, physical or mental disability, or
status with respect to marriage or public assistance.

Taxes: The Concessionaire will be responsible for City and State sales taxes on all
concession sales. The Concessionaire will also be responsible for the City of Bismarck real
estate taxes allocated to the concession stands, pro-rated for the number of months of
operation by the Concessionaire.

Signage: The Concessionaire must provide signage at the concession stand identifying the
Concessionaire as the operator of the stands. Suggested language is as follows: “The
concession and food service is operated under contract with Dirty Bean LLC — DBA Classic
Rock Caf¢ Kitchen.”

BY:

Mark Zimmerman, President
Board of Park Commissioners
400 East Front Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58504

BY:

Brad Feldman

Dirty Bean, LLC — DBA Classic Rock Café Kitchen
6806 Woodrow Ct.

Bismarck, ND 58504



Exhibit A

Ordinances of the Park District of the City of Bismarck
Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners on December 15, 2011
Revised June 18, 2015 and December 21, 2023

WHEREAS, the Park District of the City of Bismarck is a municipal subdivision organized pursuant to chapter 40-

49 of the North Dakota Century Code (“N.D.C.C.”); and

WHEREAS, Section 40-49-13, N.D.C.C., provides for the exercise of the powers of the Board of Park

Commissioners by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Park District of the City of Bismarck has heretofore from time to time enacted ordinances pursuant

to law and desires to amend and restate such ordinances.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it enacted by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District of the City of

Bismarck:

1. Authority

These ordinances are enacted pursuant to section 40-49-12, N.D.C.C., and shall be known and cited as the

ordinances of the Park District of the City of Bismarck.

2. Existence of the Park District

The Park District of the City of Bismarck (“Park District”) has been created in accordance with the laws of the State

of North Dakota. The Park District includes all of the park territory within the City of Bismarck and such other

areas as may be incorporated in the city limits in the future, and such other areas that have been acquired by the Park

District or are managed by the Park District and areas that are acquired by or managed by the Park District in the

future.

3. Repeal

All ordinances previously adopted by the Park District (Section 25-16 through 25-141, Appendix A of Code of

Ordinances, City of Bismarck) are hereby repealed as of the date of enactment of these revised ordinances; however,

such prior ordinances shall apply to any acts or offenses committed prior to the repeal.

4. Scope

The provisions hereof are enacted for the regulation of the use and care of the parks and trees of the Park District of

the city by the public, and nothing herein contained shall operate to restrain or hinder the park commission of the

Park District, or the individual members thereof, or the employees of such commission, in the performance of their

official duties.

5. Disposition of offenses

A criminal or non-criminal offense as set forth in the City Code of the City of Bismarck shall be punished pursuant

to City Code as determined by the municipal court. Any violations of the North Dakota Century Code shall be dealt

with in the district courts of North Dakota pursuant to the laws of North Dakota. Any violations of Park District

ordinances shall be punished by a fine not more than five-hundred dollars ($500.00) pursuant to the maximum

penalty set forth in section 40-49-12(3), N.D.C.C. The municipal court of the City of Bismarck shall have

jurisdiction over all Park District ordinance violations.

6. Enforcement

The Police Department of the City of Bismarck is hereby authorized to enter onto and to enforce all of the Park

District ordinances, all offenses and provisions as set forth in Title 3, Animal Control and Protection, and Title 6,

Criminal Offenses, of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, and state statutes in the parks under the operation

and control of the Park District in the city. The Burleigh County Sheriff is hereby authorized to enter onto and to

enforce all of the Park District ordinances and state statutes in the parks under the operation and control of the Park

District that are located in Burleigh County outside the city limits. Park District employees or agents of the Park

District are authorized to enforce violations of Park District ordinances.

7. Meetings of the Board

The Board of Park Commissioners shall meet the third Thursday of every month at 5:15 p.m. in the City/County

Building at 221 North 5" Street, Bismarck, unless some other time or place shall be specifically fixed by the board.

8. Operation of vehicles

(1) In addition to the provisions of this ordinance, Title 12, Traffic Ordinances, of the City of Bismarck Code of
Ordinances, as amended, shall apply to all Park District property.

(2) No person shall operate any motorized vehicle on any area within the parks other than the roads, driveways or
parking lots provided for such purposes. The prohibitions of this subsection do not apply to medical mobility



devices, or vehicles used by peace officers, emergency personnel, maintenance personnel or special event
personnel in the performance of their official duties.

9. Prohibited Acts

)
@)

All offenses and provisions as set forth in Title 3, Animal Control and Protection, and Title 6, Criminal
Offenses, of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, as amended, shall apply to all Park District property.

It shall be unlawful for any person using parks under the operation and control of the Park District to perform
any of the following acts:

a. Use of glass beverage containers or to break any glass object.

b. Consume or possess alcoholic beverages without first obtaining a beverage permit from the Park District.

c. Ride or lead horses except in the Horse Arena or other designated or approved area.

d. Build any fire for any purposes, except in such places as may be designated by the Park District.

e. Posting of posters and advertisements.

f. Maintain any refreshment stand, offer any article of any character for sale, or conduct any business for profit
on Park District property without obtaining a permit from the Park District.

g. Knowingly carry or discharge any dangerous or concealed weapon, or any firearms, gun, air rifle, slingshot or
other similar weapon at a school or school-sponsored event on school property or a publicly owned or operated
building except for (1) the use of bow and arrow within a designated archery range or with a Special Herd
Reduction Deer bow license or a special turkey bow license issued by the North Dakota Game and Fish
Department in Bismarck and a trespass permit issued by the Bismarck Chief of Police or (2) the use of approved
equipment, such as BB guns, in Park District approved classes. The exemptions identified in section 62.1-02-
05(2), N.D.C.C. apply to this subsection.

h. Permit any animal to run at large. Dogs must be leashed except in the leash-free area of a dog park.

i. Fail to promptly clean up and dispose of the excrement of an animal for which you are responsible that is
deposited upon park property.

j. Hunting, trapping or killing of animals or birds, except for the use of bow and arrow within a designated area
with a Special Herd Reduction Deer Bow license or a special turkey bow license issued by the North Dakota
Game and Fish Department in Bismarck and a trespass permit issued by the Bismarck Chief of Police.

k. Camp overnight in any parks except parks designated for overnight camping with a valid permit.

1. Enter upon any portion of a park which is temporarily or permanently closed to the public.

m. Bring in or dump, deposit or leave waste, garbage, refuse or other trash, except in proper receptacles where
provided.

n. Deposit snow in any city park.

0. Violate posted or printed rules of the Park District.

10. Park Trees
The ordinances in Title 13, Trees and Vegetation, of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, as amended, shall

apply to all Park District property.

Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners: December 21, 2023
Published in The Bismarck Tribune: December 28, 2023
Effective: December 31, 2023



BISMARCK PARKS AND , \
RE \A ]
RECREATION DISTRICT | ed's P\2y

November 10, 2025

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann and President Zimmerman
Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director

FROM: Julie Fornshell, Administrative Services Manager %

RE: Proposed Human Resource Policy and Procedure Handbook Updates
Commissioners and Executive Director Klipfel:

The Human Resource Policy and Procedure Handbook has been reviewed by Executive
Director Klipfel and Executive Team members, and the attached pages show the proposed

changes.

Page 1: Clean up the language to reflect the handbook’s development date with the most
recent approval date.

Page 2: Update the vision, mission and core values.

Page 20: Contains information about the seasonal/part-time employee benefits card
which was implemented in 2023.

Page 23-25: Removing the word District as the handbook is for District employees.
Page 67: Fixed formatting of the page.

Staff respectfully request the Board’s approval of the proposed changes. Please let me
know if there are any questions.

A nationally accredifed park and recreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



This Human Resource Policy and Procedure Handbook was approved September 13,

2007 with the most recent revision approved *-revisions-approved-November48-2010;

November—16—2023 by the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Board of Park

Commissioners and supersedes, overrides and nullifies all previous versions of the

handbook.

This handbook is not intended to create a contract between the District and its
employees or to change the status of employees from employment at will. The
policies and procedures described in this handbook are not conditions of
employment and do not create a contract between the District and its employees.
The District and its employees have an employment relationship which is known
as “employment at will.” This means that either the District or an individual
employee has the right to terminate the employment relationship at any time, for

any reason, or for no reason at all, with or without advance notice.



INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, a political subdivision of the state of North
Dakota, was organized in 1927. The District is governed by a five member elected board
from the boundaries of the District, which are Bismarck’s city limits. The greatest strength
of the Park District is its employees. The employees implement and oversee the daily
operations and programming of the District.

The Board of Park Commissioners and Park District staff strive to meet the vision and
mission of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District. The vision of the Bismarck Parks
and Recreation District is: “Provide the highest quality Be-the-leader-and-premier
providerof-public parks, programs, facilities and leisure services.” The mission of
the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District is: “Collaborate Werk-with the community
to provide residents and visitors the highest quality park, program, facility and
event experience.
In addition, the six core values that both the Board members and management staff have
in common are:

Accountability
Collaboration
Community
Diversitylnclusion

Integrity
Professionalism

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Human Resource Policy and
Procedure Handbook is to provide a resource for full and part-time employees as to the
general and specific policies and procedures of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District (the “District”). The Handbook shall serve as a guide and reference for employees
to utilize during their tenure with the District. It is not intended to create a contract
between the District and its employees or to change the status of employees from
employment at will.

The policies and procedures described in this handbook are not conditions of
employment and do not create a contract between the District and its employees.
The District and its employees have an employment relationship which is known
as “employment at will.” This means that either the District or an individual
employee has the right to terminate the employment relationship at any time, for
any reason, or for no reason at all, with or without advance notice.

Updated February 2018
Updated May 2019



PART-TIME EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

1.

Unemployment:
Payable under the reimbursement provisions of the North Dakota Unemployment
Compensation Law.

Social Security:
Percentage of wages as determined by federal law.

Medicare:
Percentage of wages as determined by federal law.

Worker's Compensation:
Eligible employees will receive benefits from Workforce Safety and Insurance as
defined in the North Dakota Century Code.

Program and Facility Use:

Employee receives free use of District facilities and programs in the area of his/her
employment only. Employee also receives a seasonal/pari-time employee
benefits card which provides the person free access to designated facilities.

Mileage reimbursement for designated positions.

20



USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES

1.

No employees are authorized to use District vehicles except during working hours
or special assignment. District vehicles are not for personal use. Written
authorization must be given by an appropriate supervisor for use of District vehicle
for special assignment.

All District-employees driving a District vehicle must have a valid driver's license
with them at all times.

Improper or unauthorized use of District vehicles or equipment will result in
disciplinary action.

All Distrist-employees are required to wear a seatbelt while driving or riding in a
District vehicle or within their own vehicle while being used for District business.

Only two (2) people are allowed within District trucks and personal trucks being
used for District business, except that three persons are allowed with a bench seat
providing seat belts are available for all three.

No Districtemployee shall haul workers in a pickup box, nor shall any person ride
in a pickup box.

Employees are prohibited from taking and/or using any District supplies, materials
or equipment for their own use or personal gain.

Employees are to refrain from using a cell phone while driving a District vehicle.
Employees are not required to answer a cell phone call while driving and if they
choose to do so, they are encouraged to safely move to the side of the road before
conversing.

Employees are not allowed to text or send other electronic messages while driving

a District vehicle. Additionally, employees must maintain control of the District
vehicle and not operate the vehicle while distracted.

23



EMPLOYER PROVIDED VEHICLES

1.

The District has authorized certain positions to use District vehicles for commuting
between home and work.

Use of employer provided vehicles is limited to work purposes and commuting
purposes only to and from work. Meetings after regular working hours are
considered part of work.

The District has elected to use the Internal Revenue Service commuting rule. This
non-cash wage is computed and added to the employee’s biweekly payroll check.
All required federal and state income taxes are deducted from the total vehicle
value. The per day valuation will exclude annual leave, holiday or sick leave taken.
Any required adjustments will be made at the end of the year.

Due to use of this valuation method, employees using employer provided vehicles
are not required to keep a mileage log.

All Bistrist-employees driving a District vehicle must have a valid driver's license
with them at all times.

All Bistrist-employees are required to wear a seatbelt while driving or riding in a
District vehicle.

Employees are not allowed to text or send other electronic messages while driving

a District vehicle. Additionally, employees must maintain control of the District
vehicle and not operate the vehicle while distracted.

Updated May 2019
Updated November 2023

24



EMPLOYEE PROVIDED VEHICLE

1.

The District may provide, at its discretion, a flat monthly rate for employees in
certain classifications. If not provided a flat monthly rate, the employee will log
daily mileage on District reimbursement form and submit to the main office upon
the conclusion of each month for reimbursement. (SEE ATTACHMENT F)

Daily mileage must exclude any commuting miles. Commuting miles are the miles
between an employee’s residence and their regular work location.

Reimbursement Rate: The District will pay the current IRS allowance for work-
related travel when an employee utilizesé his/her personal vehicle.

Employees are to refrain from using a cell phone while driving a vehicle for District
purposes. Employees are not required to answer a cell phone call while driving
and if they choose to do so, they are encouraged to safely move to the side of the
road before conversing.

All Bistrist-employees driving an employee provided vehicle must have a valid
driver’s license with them at all times.

All Bistrict-employees are required to wear a seatbelt while driving or riding in a
vehicle for District business.

Employees are not allowed to text or send other electronic messages while

driving a vehicle for District purposes. Additionally, employees must maintain
control of the vehicle and not operate the vehicle while distracted.

Updated November 2023

25



COMPUTER USE AND SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

Usage of District computers by employees is for work-related purposes. This policy is to
inform you that the District may monitor computer use and may need to release electronic
information pursuant to open records laws. Employees should have no expectation of
privacy when using the District’s electronic or other equipment. Monitoring and searching
of computers will be limited to job-related reasons for search or surveillance policies. The
purpose of these policies is to protect employee safety and security and, in addition, to
protect District assets and liabilites. See also paragraph 6 of the Personal Conduct
policy, as it pertains to computer usage.

Employees must keep confidential and financial information secure. It is required that
any outside computer that connects to the network has firewall and anti-virus software
installed and up to date. It is required that PCI Data Security Standard requirements be
met as applicable.

Social media provides an opportunity to communicate and to express yourself in a public
forum. Such communication can have negative impacts on the District, your coworkers
and your work reputation. This policy is to assist you in making responsible decisions in
using social media.

During work time, do not use personal social media unless it is work related and part of
your job duties as authorized by your supervisor.

Be careful not to represent or give the impression of speaking on behalf of the District
when speaking on your own behalf. When posting online content related to the District,
make it clear that you are not speaking on behalf of the District.

Do not reveal confidential or proprietary information concerning the District.

Adhere to other provisions of the Human Resource Policy and Procedure Handbook. The
same principles found in these policies apply to your activities online. Do not post
obscenities, slurs, discriminatory remarks, harassments, and personal attacks that can
damage the reputation of the District, employees, or District users.

Avoid using statements, photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as
malicious, obscene, threatening or intimidating, that disparage others, or that might
constitute harassment or bullying. Examples of such conduct might include offensive
posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s reputation or posts that could contribute to
a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any other status
protected by law or District policy.

Updated November 2020
67



DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
October 16, 2025

The Board of Park Commissioners held their regular meeting on October 16, 2025 in the Tom
Baker meeting room of the City/County Building. President Zimmerman called the meeting to
order at 5:15 pm. The pledge of allegiance was said. Commissioners Herzog, Jeske and
Redmann were present. Commissioner Gilbertson was absent.

Commissioner Jeske moved to approve the agenda as presented. Commissioner Redmann
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Herzog, Jeske,
Redmann, and President Zimmerman. The nays being none, the motion carried.

Bismarck Arts & Galleries Association Executive Director Cherise Pfaff appeared before the
board as the featured partner and program.

Lauren Oster from the Bismarck Community Development Department provided an update on
the Bismarck Arts and Culture Master Plan.

Jeff Ubl with Ubl Design Group informed the Board that no bids were received for the World
War Memorial Building roof replacement project. The plans are to re-bid the project at the
beginning of 2026.

Commissioner Redmann moved approval to call for bids on the BPRD Administrative Office
lobby renovation. Commissioner Jeske seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows:
Ayes: Commissioners Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman. The nays being
none, the motion carried.

Commissioner Jeske moved to approve the following consent agenda:
e Consideration of September 11, 2025 Board meeting minutes
e Consideration of 2026 Matching Grant application
e Consideration of agreements
o Bismarck Gymnastics Academy use agreement
o Park Development Agreement for Silver Ranch 3 and 4
e Request Board authorization to apply for the following grants
o Emerald Ash Borer Mitigation
o USTA Northern Tennis Grant
e Request Board authorization to call for the following bids
o 2026 maintenance equipment
o 2026 fertilizer
e Request Board authorization to apply for Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Loan
e Request Board authorization to select consultant and call for bids on the General Sibley
Park day use area road project



Commissioner Redmann seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Commissioners Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman. The nays being none, the

motion carried.

Commissioner Redmann moved to approve bills for payment with checks 408332 to 408344
and 219789 to 220017 along with bank drafts DFT001614 to DFT001628, EFTs 3567 to 3608 and
direct deposits 91561 to 92979. Commissioner Jeske seconded the motion, and the voting
went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Herzog, Redmann, Jeske and President Zimmerman.
The nays being none, the motion carried.

The full-time and full-time seasonal employee luncheon will be November 18, 2025 at 11:30 am
at the Municipal Country Club. The next regular Board meeting will be held November 20, 2025
at 5:15 pm in the Tom Baker Meeting Room.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:50 pm.



RECREATION DISTRICT

BISMARCK PARKS AND L Dlay!
Est. 1927 Le’* 5 P Y

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann and President Zimmerman
Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director

FROM: David Mayer, Operations Directo.r;DM

DATE: November 13, 2025

RE: Authorization to Accept Land Donation

Commissioners and Executive Director Klipfel:
Please see the attached information from the Silbernagel family to donate Lot 27, Block 3 of the Silver Ranch 5"
Addition. The majority of the lot will be encumbered by a storm water pond for a new development but will be

graded to allow for the construction of a future shared use path extension for the neighborhood.

Staff recommends acceptance of the donation.

A nadionally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



November 5th, 2025

Kevin Klipfel

Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
400 East Front Avenue

Bismarck, ND 58504

RE: Dedication of Real Property
Silver Ranch 5th Addition

Mr Klipfel and Bismarck Parks and Recreation Board,

The Silbernagel Family/Silver Ranch 18, LLLP, owners of real property in Section 18, Township
139 North, Burleigh County, North Dakota would like to donate Lot 27, Block 3, Silver Ranch
Fifth Addition, to the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District. This area is approximately 5.85
acres (254,750 SF) that will be determined by the final recorded and approved plat.

The donation is intended for the use of walking trails, parks and watershed drainage in such a
manner as to be determined in conjunction with the developer, Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District and the property owners.

Sincerely,

Nadeane Silbernagel, Donna Fricke, Joan Millner
Karen Silbernagel Danley, and Dave Silbernagel
Silbernagel Family/Silver Ranch Family Development

1117 N 3rd
Bismarck ND 58501

dnf

Silverranch60@gmail.com
701.391.3918



r 20 L UTHS

3
N
- 1008 v
S o ;
sy
—
>’'d ANVAWO)) ¥ NaDVH 'NOSNAMS

&8
v H A
L UNHAE -ﬂr_im

sos2129°E
§38.63

URRNSHNB U HIAN BT EH NI HE R R ;”—._-.-

1008
3.01,81.00N

LA
%
,/\‘\Es@#

\_
/. =

\

"

SLNGAFUNSYIN 0
OIS ANYA AVA SIONVISIO ONY SONRY3E

434 TYNOUYNSLINI F§V SIND
HOZ 40 INIUSHFOY
302 Hanos £8 avn
nusis
IUYNIGHO0 TNV IUVIS YIONVD HIYON
TRATVT SIVNIGE00D

ONVNIGHO A1

48 3M0Z HINGS SNY1g JIvls IOV KLU0
INTIVIT 93 SK

S3ION

SURURY WARVHBY RN MTH R R R B R A SRR NIRRT R E AR AR NN T B R RGN R S E A T B R R i B A i E ]

,66°98S
M.05,I¥.68N

,/
2

£
Wt
LN v.,qm

6]

R
B

£ LAAHS 7 LAFHS

[ HUHEEAHU R A RN AR AR

VY.LOXVYA HLHON ‘ALNNOD HOIFTHNE MOHVYINSIF

NVTATETR TVLIONTHd HLIATS THL 40
LSTM 62 TINVY HINON 684 dIHSNHOL '8} NOILITS A0
g/t HIN0S THL A0 LUV INITT

NOILIdAV HL1dI4 HONVH H3ATIS

.95°2¢€6
3.0G,1+.68S

SI'6EL
3,04,81.00N




» 0 Z1IE

ooy poamame)
L e —

D'd ANVAWOD) % NIDOVH ‘NOSNIMS

PO AHYA AVIN SIONVISII ONY SONWY3E
DVid M ININOn ©
135 38 01 INIWNON O 1327 TYNOUYNUIM v StiN

S20Z Wt Vv
06 = .1 = IS

2UYMOY0GD _INVId VIS VIONVD HIHON
AUVT VRSO0

JoNYMGHO 1D
48 3NGZ HINGS “INVd UVLS vI0NYT HIYON
DNEVIE 30 SEVE

* S3ION

NOILIOGY QL
HONVY NIAIS

AnInIsYl
Azrun 08

e ¥

INGZSV v

STuDT NOSSIIMGD AN

V10XY0 HIBON AUNNGD HTRING
2080d A4VION

o111 Vi HONYY 4N S

QUYNISIO_ONY 40 SULS NIYLNZD ISOHI M3ONN O NO SZ0M
DWUDTTI SYD $01 ONYT U HIM WO QI XRIYPSIE 30 AL

o
NORLIH NMOHS NFHIZHM SINIT ALTUN DN8Nd H3HIO ONY dUVM S,

IAYS I AU IH 1YHL
3l QUMINI OHM ONY N 0IBROSIA NOSH3d I 38 01 34 0L
IV 3ddy ATIYNOSHIS 3N 3601438 ~ 20

Eggwfgkgkdugu
T —
— T woun T

( tong 50 Ao
ss(
(vioxva HizON 0 Uvis

V3HY ININISYI 41 SSOHOY YO/ONY HIAD 'NIONN MILYM JO MO CRUINHISEONN

Al

SININISVT AL SY NORUH
43S 20 SIUNUA BN UIHIO HO INOHATTU
EEEE.E..QEE“;;U:
z.:

A0S ISN I8N 3HL_O1 10N 40
WD WIS TIV INIGTON NORIIH NNOHS

SY SII3US 2UVDI00H OS 0Q ONY YIONYT HINON ‘AINNCI HOGNG MOYYNSIE _NOUNY HLAL HONYY HIATS,
SY 3LL¥Id ONY GLU3ASNS 38 Ol NOJIH OIBROSI NOUBOd LYHI (ISOYD SYH NOTUIH NHOHS ALH3dOdd

ML IO HQIFYIOS ONY HINNO I NG ‘d1T1 Wi HONYY NATS AvHL SINZSISd JSIHL A8 N3 TIV MONN

HTINONT 41D

TIHES T 1wEYD

a
SHI 3A0¥ddY ABIUIM VIONYO HIBON YOHYNSIE O ALD 3HI 30 ¥IINONI AID TIHOS r Tways 1

NOUVIRGT ¥ AVOLULD 5250

vid

TEINONT D 30 TVACHIIY

HOLVHISINMGY MDD = XINYPOL NOSYT

ASIY INIOSII — ZUMOS 1 Tvrom

—z0z O AVD T 31 GHOUSIY NOUNISIY A8
NINVL SYM VIONYQ RIMON SOMYNSIS 50 SHINOSSIMOD ALD O GHYOS 3HI 40 NOUDY DNIGO3¥03 IHI
1¥1d GHADSY I SO AHYONNOS 3HE NIHIM
NIV SNON3¥ ANY UYIVA ABFEIH S30Q ONY_YIONYQ HINON SOHVISIE 30 ALD 3HL JO NYId HUSYA
3HI 0L ININGNGNY NY SV 1V1d O3ADHddY 3HI NO NWOHS SV SONNORD 3HI GAONJAY SYH 'NOJUIHI
NNOHS SIIRUS TIV O NOUYDIG30-34 I TUJTIV SYH A¥id 31 NO NWOKS SY ONY1 O NOSAIES
3HL 03A0¥ddY SYH VI0XYT HIBON SOHYNSIE J0 ALD 3Hi 30 SYINDESINNOD LD 0 GHYOd IHL

SIENOESIINGD ALD 30 08vV08 J0 TVACTDY

AHVLIUOIS ~ HLIHT N3

1s301y NYRIVIO — ZiyvwOs T Taviom

NOSSINOO ININNYId FHI A8 OHO¥cdy NIF8 SYH 1¥id 3Hi NO NMOKS S¥ ONYT S0 NOSAIOBAS il

NOSHINGO ONINNY Id AL J0 YAV

€65C DN NOUYMISD3Y TN

rosTS
VIONYD HINON SOUYASIE
WAV NSVE 606

T'd 0O ¥ NIIVH NOSNIMS

1234400 3¥v SWYIID SUI00D QNY WWNOSNIAG TIV LVHL ONV L3S NI38 AVH SINInONOR
QRA03¥ TIV 1VHL “LI3UHCO 34Y NOU3H NWOKS SININNOA TIv AVHI '43138 GNY IDQTWONN AN 10 1538
3rU_O1 1235900 ONY 3Nl ST NOJH3H NWOKS NOUYASOM TIV 1VHL ZZ0Z B ABYNNELS NO OUTINOT ONY

NOISNH3ANS AN HIONN Q3N03d ASAUNS ¥ 30 SAUON JHL 40 AdOD 3l ¥ SI1VId GNCHAAY U VKL
AMUNTD 1G3HIH_VIONVD HINOM JO VIS I M HOLAINS ONY1 TVNOSSLIONS v UIZITYE A¥Nit )

AUVIUHM YD) SHUNUNS

TSI7 40 3907 SROV WLTr SMYINGD TDiYd QIDROSI0 A08Y W

;
.
§
§
g
:
&
o
3
5
H
-3
§
¥
3
;
:
8
4
i

SHOTIOS SV (38ADS3 VIONYD HIYON ALNNGI HOLTWNE
HIAS HL 40 1S3 B2 39NYH HINON 6T1 SHSNWOL W1 NOUDZS JO Z/t HINOS 3Kt 30 1¥vd IVHL TV

VY.LOXMVYA HLHON ‘ALNNOD HDIFTHNE HMOHVINSIF

NVIATY TN TVIIINIYd HIATS THL 40

LSTM 62 JINVH HINON 68/ dIHSNMOL ‘8 NOILIFS A0

/1 HIN0S JHLI A0 LYVd INITE

NOILIdaVv H1dI4 HONVH H3A'TIS

- 1 1 -
\ — ~i \ \ 1 —~—
1 ] e T
e i T e
@ / z | ; I o f
P~ A.T \ \ \T _ _ _
5 ¢ e — s _ ! !
- K ' 3
ssurn 8 g § / __ | \ / [NOLIGOY QMIHL HONVY ¥IATS n_ _ _
z a2 &5 wzRer / ! ' | I | I !
e 3 1 _._ _ ___ 1 » o &
Sy ! U ! i gl st | | |
gy | anasva 18 =l ﬁ v 1mamv3 | |
) o B it 0 g 6r _ L
b it I miopimivnioin enteoimip |3 | oy S i A S =y
voN 52 VN2
Loy 5§ oo / i
o kd T P 37 _ Tooe
> ; von sz von s h
5 s i T B, 2 | 8 oo m—
< |8 = Ik i o e . T
B3 N T ogE 4 4 P
i3 gl L OER - 8z
ElN) 5 o6 g, 1 slaz
. . o
; 4 ]
- _wm 1 \ i %
2 &
12 s8508 F—sru—] _ ! S99t %ﬂw;v
>
9577¢8
z 3,06, 1,685 TSy d
8= 1314 TYNOUYNMM
v’.- “ 9961 hghg
m_ mmuw_ a0 ot L u..ﬂ.h vioxva xﬁ
81035
/\ S MELY ¥/\ MS
i :
i S
NOUIS
HUND




» 50 € 1IWS

"2'd ANVANO)) ¥ NaOVH 'NOSNAMS

POzt
- oz

MLy.OZLN

DV M ININNOR ©
135 38 01 INGAONON O

€202 W1 WY
08 = .1 — T3S

—

05 0

V.10X)VYd HLHON ‘ALNNOD HDIFTHNEG MOHVYNSIF

NVTATHIN TVAIINIED HIATA JHL A0
LSTM 64 JINVY HLYON 68/ JIHSNMOL ‘81 NOIIITS A0
/1 HINO0S JHL 40 LYVd INITT

NOILLIdaVv H1dI4d HONVH H3ATIS




>0y ITHS

D'd ANVJAOD) ¥ NIDVH ‘NOSNIMS

|
|
|
V4 N aNRNOon O .ﬂa.ﬂ |
135 38 ot 1KanoNon © » ._hl
2\3 !
S20Z W1 WY B J\h BEBIZ |
05 = 4 - T3S mey M.£5,92.88N | .
) LORES - ;
o5 0 WS C3H T 1008 45
2/ 3.01L,8LO0ON Vs
/
. ® . s
; g
. - o 7, Y
NOWIODY QUM / .
/ i
s
/
/
62190261 3
1SRy N
2324 TYNOUYNAIUN
9861 40 INFUSTOY
NOUIOQY QutL
HONYY RIS

UVIS VIONY HLYON

F 3
£r

NOSZIZIN e
538.63"

V.L0)VYAd HLHON ‘ALNNOD HOIFTHNEG YNOHVYINSIF

NVIATATH TVAIINTSd HLIAIS JHL 40
LSTM 642 JINVY HLNON 681 JIHSNMOL ‘84 NOILITS A0
2/t HIN0S JHL A0 LYVL INISE

NOILIAav H1di4 HONVH H3ATIS




October 19, 2025

Kevin Klipfel
400 E. Front Ave.
Bismarck, North Dakota 58504

Dear Kevin Klipfel,

We are writing to formally confirm that Super Siide LLP intends to continue
our contractual agreement for years six through ten. At this time, we do
not propose any changes to the existing terms and conditions of the
contract.

We value our ongoing partnership and look forward to continuing our
successful collaboration in the years ahead.

Thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,
Richard Fleckenstein, Nicole Schumaker, & Brandi Bonnet
Super Slide LLP




SUPER SLIDE, LLP ADDENDUM

Bismarck Parks and Recreation District and Super Slide, LLP agree to continue to the current
operating agreement of Super Slide, LLP, an amusement park at Riverside Park Road, Sertoma

Park.
The term of the addendum will be January 1, 2026 — December 31, 2030.

Super Slide shall pay to the Park District as rent for the premises a sum of 8% on all gross sales
up to $10,000 and 12% on gross revenue over $10,000 in each calendar year.

A processing fee (currently 3.3075%, subject to change) will be added to any payments made
with a credit card. Processing fees can be avoided by making payment by cash or paper check.

Payment Election: Initial option below that will be applicable to the term of this agreement.

Credit card payments — rental fee plus processing fee
Cash or paper check payment — rental fee

Richard Fleckenstein Date
SuperSlide, LLP

Mark Zimmerman, President Date
Board of Park Commissioners



Exhibit A
Updated Ordinances

Ordinances of the Park District of the City of Bismarck
Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners on December 15, 2011
Revised June 18, 2015 and December 21, 2023

WHEREAS, the Park District of the City of Bismarck is a municipal subdivision organized pursuant to chapter 40-49
of the North Dakota Century Code (“N.D.C.C.”); and

WHEREAS, Section 40-49-13, N.D.C.C., provides for the exercise of the powers of the Board of Park Commissioners
by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Park District of the City of Bismarck has heretofore from time to time enacted ordinances pursuant
to law and desires to amend and restate such ordinances.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it enacted by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District of the City of Bismarck:
1. Authority

These ordinances are enacted pursuant to section 40-49-12, N.D.C.C., and shall be known and cited as the
ordinances of the Park District of the City of Bismarck.

2. Existence of the Park District

The Park District of the City of Bismarck (“Park District”) has been created in accordance with the laws of the State
of North Dakota. The Park District includes all of the park territory within the City of Bismarck and such other
areas as may be incorporated in the city limits in the future, and such other areas that have been acquired by the
Park District or are managed by the Park District and areas that are acquired by or managed by the Park District in
the future.

3. Repeal

All ordinances previously adopted by the Park District (Section 25-16 through 25-141, Appendix A of Code of
Ordinances, City of Bismarck) are hereby repealed as of the date of enactment of these revised ordinances;
however, such prior ordinances shall apply to any acts or offenses committed prior to the repeal.

4, Scope

The provisions hereof are enacted for the regulation of the use and care of the parks and trees of the Park District
of the city by the public, and nothing herein contained shall operate to restrain or hinder the park commission of
the Park District, or the individual members thereof, or the employees of such commission, in the performance of
their official duties.

5. Disposition of offenses

A criminal or non-criminal offense as set forth in the City Code of the City of Bismarck shall be punished pursuant
to City Code as determined by the municipal court. Any violations of the North Dakota Century Code shall be dealt
with in the district courts of North Dakota pursuant to the laws of North Dakota. Any violations of Park District
ordinances shall be punished by a fine not more than five-hundred dollars ($500.00) pursuant to the maximum
penalty set forth in section 40-49-12(3), N.D.C.C. The municipal court of the City of Bismarck shall have jurisdiction
over all Park District ordinance violations.

6. Enforcement

The Police Department of the City of Bismarck is hereby authorized to enter onto and to enforce all of the Park
District ordinances, all offenses and provisions as set forth in Title 3, Animal Control and Protection, and Title 6,
Criminal Offenses, of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, and state statutes in the parks under the operation
and control of the Park District in the city. The Burleigh County Sheriff is hereby authorized to enter onto and to
enforce all of the Park District ordinances and state statutes in the parks under the operation and control of the
Park District that are located in Burleigh County outside the city limits. Park District employees or agents of the
Park District are authorized to enforce violations of Park District ordinances.

7. Meetings of the Board

The Board of Park Commissioners shall meet the third Thursday of every month at 5:15 p.m. in the City/County
Building at 221 North 5% Street, Bismarck, unless some other time or place shall be specifically fixed by the board.
8. Operation of vehicles



(1) In addition to the provisions of this ordinance, Title 12, Traffic Ordinances, of the City of Bismarck Code of
Ordinances, as amended, shall apply to all Park District property.

(2) No person shall operate any motorized vehicle on any area within the parks other than the roads, driveways or
parking lots provided for such purposes. The prohibitions of this subsection do not apply to medical mobility
devices, or vehicles used by peace officers, emergency personnel, maintenance personnel or special event
personnel in the performance of their official duties.

9. Prohibited Acts

(1) All offenses and provisions as set forth in Title 3, Animal Control and Protection, and Title 6, Criminal Offenses,
of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, as amended, shall apply to all Park District property.

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person using parks under the operation and control of the Park District to perform
any of the following acts:

a. Use of glass beverage containers or to break any glass object.

b. Consume or possess alcoholic beverages without first obtaining a beverage permit from the Park District.
c. Ride or lead horses except in the Horse Arena or other designated or approved area.

d. Build any fire for any purposes, except in such places as may be designated by the Park District.

e. Posting of posters and advertisements.

f. Maintain any refreshment stand, offer any article of any character for sale, or conduct any business for
profit on Park District property without obtaining a permit from the Park District.

g. Knowingly carry or discharge any dangerous or concealed weapon, or any firearms, gun, air rifle, slingshot
or other similar weapon at a school or school-sponsored event on school property or a publicly owned or
operated building except for (1) the use of bow and arrow within a designated archery range or with a Special
Herd Reduction Deer bow license or a special turkey bow license issued by the North Dakota Game and Fish
Department in Bismarck and a trespass permit issued by the Bismarck Chief of Police or (2) the use of
approved equipment, such as BB guns, in Park District approved classes. The exemptions identified in section
62.1-02-05(2), N.D.C.C. apply to this subsection.

h. Permit any animal to run at large. Dogs must be leashed except in the leash-free area of a dog park.

i. Fail to promptly clean up and dispose of the excrement of an animal for which you are responsible that is
deposited upon park property.

j. Hunting, trapping or killing of animals or birds, except for the use of bow and arrow within a designated area
with a Special Herd Reduction Deer Bow license or a special turkey bow license issued by the North Dakota
Game and Fish Department in Bismarck and a trespass permit issued by the Bismarck Chief of Police.

k. Camp overnight in any parks except parks designated for overnight camping with a valid permit.

. Enter upon any portion of a park which is temporarily or permanently closed to the public.

m. Bring in or dump, deposit or leave waste, garbage, refuse or other trash, except in proper receptacles
where provided.

n. Deposit snow in any city park.

0. Violate posted or printed rules of the Park District.

10. Park Trees

The ordinances in Title 13, Trees and Vegetation, of the City of Bismarck Code of Ordinances, as amended, shall

apply to all Park District property.

Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners: December 21, 2023
Published in The Bismarck Tribune: December 28, 2023
Effective: December 31, 2023




BISMARCK PARKS AND \ \
AN .
éE%I;EATION DISTRICT \ ﬁJ( S P\ )’

November 5, 2025

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman
Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director

FROM: David Mayer, Operations Directorﬁw
Mike Wald, Facilities and Programs Directqr

SUBJECT: Request to Select Consultants for 2026 Projects
Commissioners and Executive Director Klipfel:

Staff is requesting authorization to select consultants for a variety of projects that are included in
the 2026 budget. The projects are as follows:

Park Operations Division

e Park Shop Concrete
Custer Park Stage
Municipal Country Club Restroom
Municipal Ballpark Safety Netting
McDowell Dam Shower Building

Facilities and Programs Division

e Paul H. Wachter Aquatic Complex Pool Mechanical Updates
BSC Agquatic and Wellness Center Timing System
Schaumberg Arena Refrigeration System Replacement
Schaumberg Arena Bleachers
VFW Sports Center Boilers
Tom O’Leary Golf Course Cart Paths, Phase II

All Areas
e Various Parking Lot Projects

Once consultants are selected, the agreements will be brought to the Board for review and
approval. Please let me know if you have any questions.

A nationally accredifed park and recreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P: (701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org l www.bisparks.org



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT ad's PIAY:

Est. 1927
TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Herzog, Jeske, Redmann, and President Zimmerman
Kevin Klipfel, Executive Director
FROM: David Mayer, Operations Directorﬁv\
DATE: November 11, 2025
RE: Request Board Authorization to Call for Bids

Staff is requesting authorization to call for bids for portable toilets. They are used throughout the
park district at for the convenience of park users at a variety of parks and facilities.

A wationally accredifed park and recreation agency.

400 E. Front Ave. | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

KU Project #: 2514-11024

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of November 20, 2025 (“Effective Date”) between Bismarck Parks
and Recreation District (“Owner”) and KU Engineering LLC (“Engineer”).

Owner’s Project, of which Engineer’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as
follows: General Sibley Park Roadway Improvements (“Project”).

Engineer’s services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows: Topographic Survey,
Preliminary Design, Final Design, Bidding, Construction Observation and Administration (“Services”).
See Exhibit A for full scope of engineering services.

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:

1.01

A.

2.01

Basic Agreement and Period of Service

Engineer shall provide or furnish the Services set forth in this Agreement. If authorized by Owner, or if
required because of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services in addition to those set forth
above (“Additional Services”).

Engineer shall complete its Services within the following specific time period: Approximately 11/20/2025
to 11/6/2026. The compensation amounts stipulated in Paragraph 2.02 is conditioned on a period of
service not exceeding 12/30/2026.

If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and continuous
progress of Engineer’s Services is impaired, or Engineer’s Services are delayed or suspended, then the time
for completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’'s compensation, shall be
adjusted equitably.

Payment Procedures

Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and submit the
invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. If Owner
fails to make any payment due Engineer for Services, Additional Services, and expenses within 30 days
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then (1) the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0%
per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day, and (2) in
addition  Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend Services under this
Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, Additional Services, expenses,
and other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension.

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 1




B. Payment: As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and Additional Services, Owner

2.02

2.03

3.01

shall pay Engineer as set forth in Paragraphs 2.01, 2.02 (Services), and 2.03 (Additional Services). If Owner
disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in
writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the
undisputed portion.

Basis of Payment—Lump Sum
Owner shall pay Engineer for Services as follows:

1. A Lump Sum amount of $84,900.00.

a. Topographic Survey: $ 7,700.00
b. Preliminary Design: $ 6,500.00
c. Final Design: S 38,900.00
d. Bidding: $ 6,800.00

e. Construction Observation & Administration S 25,000.00
2. In addition to the Lump Sum amount, reimbursement for the following expenses: [None]

3. Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted herein to be
consistent with services actually rendered but shall not exceed the total Lump Sum amount unless
approved in writing by the Owner.

The portion of the compensation amount billed monthly for Engineer's Services will be based upon
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of the total Services actually completed during the billing period.

Additional Services: For Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the cumulative
hours charged in providing the Additional Services by each class of Engineer’s employees, times standard
hourly rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with
providing the Additional Services and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any.

Termination

A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated:

1. Forcause,

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to
perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party.
Failure to pay Engineer for its services is a substantial failure to perform and a basis for
termination.

b. By Engineer:

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform services
contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 2




4,01

5.01

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s Services are delayed for more than 90 days
for reasons beyond Engineer's control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of
undisclosed Constituents of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 5.01.1.

c. Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial
failure under Paragraph 3.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure
such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and to the
extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such
party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the
same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60
days after the date of receipt of the notice.

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice from Owner.

In the event of any termination under Paragraph 3.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner and to
receive full payment for all Services and Additional Services performed or furnished in accordance with this
Agreement, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective date of termination in
connection with providing the Services and Additional Services, and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any.

Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 4.01.B the assigns of
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the successors,
executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all
covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement.

Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but
without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law.
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.

Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or
give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity,
or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any
other party.

General Considerations

The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by
Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Engineer
makes no warranties or guarantees, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise in connection

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 3




with Consultant’s services. Notwithstanding any other representations made elsewhere in this Agreement
or in the execution of the Project, this Standard of Care shall not be modified. Subject to the foregoing
Standard of Care, Engineer and its consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information
ordinarily or customarily furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors,
manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of technical standards.

Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any Constructor’s work, nor
shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs
incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply
with laws and regulations applicable to such Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer
shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor.

Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any
Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform its work.

Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable construction cost are to be made on the basis of Engineer’s
experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry. However, because
Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or
over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions,
Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction cost will not vary from
opinions of probable construction cost prepared by Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as to
probable construction cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate.

Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements,
or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction contract documents
other than those made by Engineer or its consultants.

All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains an
ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents,
whether or not the Project is completed. Owner shall have a limited license to use the documents on the
Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full
payment due and owing for all Services and Additional Services relating to preparation of the documents
and subject to the following limitations:

1. Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on
the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the
Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or
adaptation by Engineer;

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion,
or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole
risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners,
agents, employees, and consultants;

3. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners,
agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 4




attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the documents
without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and

4. such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties.

Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, documents, text,
data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through
access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a mutually agreeable protocol.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the other’s
employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for
or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in
any way related to this Agreement or the Project, and (2) agree that Engineer’s total liability to Owner
under this Agreement shall be limited to $100,000 or the total amount of compensation received by
Engineer, whichever is greater.

Neither Party shall be considered to be in default of this Agreement if delays in or failure of performance
are due to forces beyond the reasonable control of the nonperforming Party, the effect of which the
nonperforming Party could not avoid by the exercise of reasonable diligence. Such forces include, but are
not limited to: fire, acts of God, flood, earthquake, storm, lightning, tornados, epidemic, war, riot, civil
disturbance, sabotage, strike, work slowdown, or other labor disturbances, judicial restraint, action or
inaction of any Government entity in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, quarantine restrictions,
freight embargoes, delays in long lead time items and severe weather. Any changes to the terms of this
agreement impacted by a Force Majeure event shall be documented in an Amendment to the Agreement.

The parties acknowledge that Engineer’s Services do not include any services related to unknown or
undisclosed Constituents of Concern. If Engineer or any other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an
unknown or undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of Services on the portion of the Project
affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected, or terminate this Agreement for
cause if it is not practical to continue providing Services.

Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days after
notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, then the dispute shall be
mediated. If mediation is unsuccessful, then the parties may exercise their rights at law.

This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

Engineer’s Services and Additional Services do not include: (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for
purposes of the registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission; (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other person or entity, regarding
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities, including advice with respect to the
structure, timing, terms, or other similar matters concerning such products or issuances; (3) providing
surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or enforcement of
construction insurance or surety bonding requirements; or (4) providing legal advice or representation.

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 5




6.01

7.01

8.01

Engineer shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These
regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans
or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require
that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in
employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
national origin, disability or veteran status.

The Engineer accepts no fiduciary duties or responsibilities on behalf of Owner.
Total Agreement

This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire agreement
between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement
may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument.

Definitions

Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, representatives, and
consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the Project, including but not
limited to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, construction
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and representatives of any or
all of them.

Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs),
hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or
becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.
§§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal,
State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating,
relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous
waste, substance, or material.

Attachments: Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 6




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is
indicated on page 1.

Owner: Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Engineer: KU Engineering LLC
By: By:

Print name:  Mark Zimmerman Print name:

Title: Park Board President Title:

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):

061-C

State of: ND
Address for Owner's receipt of notices: Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices:
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District KU Engineering LLC
400 E Front Avenue 400 East Broadway Avenue, Suite 600
Bismarck, ND 58504 Bismarck ND 58501

Legal Notices to: legal@kljeng.com

EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 7




This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 15 pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between Owner and
Engineer for Professional Services dated November 20,
2025.

Engineer’s Services
General Sibley Park Roadway Improvements — Bismarck, ND —2514-11024

The Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.

PART 1 — BASIC SERVICES

Project Location:

The property for which Engineer’s services are being provided is approximately a 13 acre portion of the 373-
acre General Sibley Park & Campground and is described as the 1.3-mile-long day use park road south of the
campground that leads to the boat ramp. See Exhibit A.1.

Project Understanding:

KL has been selected to complete design for the General Sibley Park Roadway Improvements (Project). The
project will provide an asphalt overlay of the existing roadway, parking, and boat ramp area within the Day
Use portion of the General Sibley Park and Campground. The current roadway, which is also used as a paved
trail year-round, is in poor condition. The roadway is cracked and deteriorating causing the roadway to be
less accessible. The project has received a 60% match up to $300,000 in funds from the NDDOT’s Special
Road Fund program to provide a 2” asphalt overlay of the entire project area. The project will also include
the addition of topsoil along both sides of the roadway averaging about a 4’ width to transition the 2” of
grade raise. The topsoiled area will be seeded. There will also be several areas that require concrete
transitions from the raised asphalt grade to the adjacent concrete sidewalks and ramps. After the asphalt
overlay is completed the parking lots and directional roadway arrows will be restriped.

The scope of work assumes that the City of Bismarck will not require site plan review. It is assumed that
they will require a floodplain development permit application be submitted. The scope of work also assumes
that no NDDOT or federal specifications, requirements, or processes will have to be followed to produce the
plans and administer the construction.

Project Schedule:

Topographic Survey: Three weeks from Agreement execution (approx. 11/20/25 —12/12/25)
Preliminary Design: Four weeks from Agreement execution (approx. 11/20/17 —12/19/25)
Final Design: Six weeks from acceptance of Preliminary Design (approx. 1/5/26 —2/17/26)
Bidding: Three weeks from acceptance of Final Design (approx. 2/17/26 —3/10/26)

Park Board Meeting: 3/19/26

Construction: Nine weeks from during the late summer/fall 2026 (approx. 9/8/26 —11/5/26)

Parties:

Owner — Bismarck Parks and Recreation District

Engineer — KU Engineering LLC

Constructor - TBD - Shall be synonymous with Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) or Contractor in this
document

Page 1 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



Engineer shall provide Basic Services as set forth below.

Al1.01 Study/Permitting and Report Phase (Not Included)

A1.02 Topographic Survey Phase

A. Ownershall:

1.

Provide current title report and supporting documents.

B. Engineer shall provide:

1. Topographic Survey

e.

Provide topographic field survey to locate edge of pavement roadways and parking
areas, adjacent sidewalks and concrete, pavement striping, gravel boat ramp area, and
clearly marked utilities.

Identify and map existing recorded easements and rights-of-way on the property found
within the Owner provided title work. The Owner assumes all risk of ownership
discrepancies and conflicts with easements or encumbrances not included in the title
work to be provided by the Owner or lack of identification of easements and
encumbrances if title work is not provided.

Identify utilities on base map based on information provided by the Owner, utility
owners and located by ND One Call.

Prepare base map of existing conditions of proposed development site.

Engineer assumes that site will not be covered in snow at the time of the field survey.

C. Engineer’s services under the Topographic Survey Phase will be considered complete on the date
when the topographic survey basemap has been delivered to Owner.

Al1.02 Preliminary Design Phase

A. Owner shall:

1.

Furnish the services of geotechnical consultants/engineers, which may include but are not

limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, evaluation of
hazardous materials, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions,
with written reports and recommendations on pavement sections, slope stability, ground
water elevations, and construction considerations appropriate for the site, based on
geotechnical sampling for design. Coordination with the geotechnical engineer and/or
preparation of exhibits or other documents for use by the Owner in obtaining the services
of a geotechnical consultant may be performed by the Engineer as an Additional Service.
The Engineer assumes no responsibility for assumptions made regarding the services of the
geotechnical consultant/engineer or lack of a geotechnical evaluation.

2. Furnish the services of an environmental and/or abatement companies to determine,
specify, and mediate any contaminated soils or hazardous materials, if necessary.

Page 2 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



3.

Provide a copy of the budget for the cost of the Work for the Engineer’s use in the design
and coordination of the project.

B. Engineer shall:

1

Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Project and available
data.

C. Concept Development

1

4,

5.

Prepare one (1) conceptual drawing(s) of the proposed site depicting locations of the
roadway and parking overlay areas and transitions.

Furnish to the Owner the conceptual site plan(s) for review.
Attend up to one (1) meeting(s) with Owner or other external parties.
Revise the conceptual site plan once per comments from Owner.

Prepare a preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

D. Marketing Exhibit or Graphical Renderings (Not Included)

E. Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date
when the revised conceptual site plan has been delivered to Owner.

A1.03 Entitlements Phase (Not Included)

A1.04 Final Design Phase

A. After acceptance by Owner of the Preliminary Design Phase documents and any other deliverables
and indication of any specific modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design
requirements of the Project desired by Owner, and upon authorization from Owner, Engineer shall
provide:

B. Detailed Site Design

1.

2.

Develop site existing conditions and removals plan
Develop site grading design

a. Grading plans will be included only for the transitions to concrete and for the paving of
the current gravel roadway to the boat ramp.

Develop Site Layout
a. Roadway/access/parking overlay limits
b. Parking striping layout

c¢. Concrete transition locations

Page 3 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



d. Construction details and typical sections for the work described above.

Utility Design (Not Included)

Stormwater Management Plan & Design (Not Included)

Landscape Plan (Not Included)

1. Topsoiled areas will be seeded with a non-irrigated seed mix.

Site Lighting Plan (Not Included)

Structural or Retaining Wall Design (Not Included)

Fencing Plan (Not Included)

Erosion Control Plan

1. Prepare erosion control plan for the site.

Permitting

1

The following permits will likely be necessary for this construction project. The Engineer’s
services do not include applying for or obtaining these permits, other than the Floodplain

Development Permit. The Engineer will refer the Owner or Constructor to the appropriate

section(s) of the design plans, if applicable, to aid the Owner or Constructor in the permit
applications.

a.

North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality North Dakota Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NDPDES) Construction Erosion Control Permit.

1)

The Owner or Constructor shall be responsible for completing the Notice of Intent
(NOI) and developing the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as
required by the Federal, State and local government. It is the responsibility of the
Owner/Constructor to ensure compliance and to modify the SWPPP for actual
schedule and construction methods.

City Permits

1)

2)

The Owner or Constructor shall obtain the necessary permits which may include,
but are not limited to:

a) Traffic, Grading, Excavation, Erosion and Sediment Control, Concrete, Right-of-
Way, Approach, Street Tree, Water, Sewer, Building, Fire Sprinkler, Plumbing,
Lawn Sprinkler, Water Meter, etc.

City shall bill permit fees directly to the Owner or Constructor.

City of Bismarck Floodplain Development Permit

1)

Engineer shall submit the application signed by the Owner to the City of Bismarck
for review and approval.

Page 4 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



d. Itis assumed that no wetlands, endangered species, or cultural resources are located
on the site and services regarding these permits are not included. If the Owner is aware
of the need for such permits the Engineer can complete this work as an Additional
Service.

K. Specifications

1. Technical specifications will be prepared for the project using the CSI Master Format
specifications generated using SpecLink.

2. Procedural and contractual forms (front end documents) will be prepared using EJCDC
format documents.

L. Traffic Study or Analysis (Not Included)

M. Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
1. Provide one (1) updated Opinion of Probable Cost at the end of the Final Design Phase
2. Opinions of cost shall only be for the materials covered by the Engineer’s design.

3. Revisions to the engineer’s opinion of cost in excess of the amounts stated herein shall be
completed as an Additional Service.

N. Review Agency (City) Coordination

1. The Engineer shall coordinate with the City of Bismarck on the Floodplain Development
Permit Application.

2. Itis assumed that the Engineer will not be required to submit a site plan or stormwater plan
to the City of Bismarck for review.

3. It is assumed that the Engineer will not be required to follow the NDDOT or federal
specifications, requirements, or processes for the project.

0. Owner Coordination

1. Itisassumed that the Engineer will host or attend up to a total of two (2) one-hour meetings
with the Owner or other external parties during the final design phase. The Engineer will
attend those meetings deemed appropriate for their scope of services either in person or
through a telephone or video conference.

2. The Engineer will be available to attend additional meetings as an Additional Service.

3. Engineer shall provide copies of drawings, reports, specifications and other necessary
information to the Owner and Constructor or other parties in PDF or paper copy format.

P. Deliverables

1. Construction drawings and appropriate details for the above tasks identified in this Phase.

Page 5 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



2.

3.

4,

Project Manual containing EJCDC front end documents and technical specifications
Updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Floodplain Development Permit Application

Q. Other Items to be Noted

1.

Engineer’s fee does not include submittal, review, recording, permit, system development,
or other fees. These fees are to be paid by Owner.

Scope does not include drafting, reviewing, obtaining, or recording any easements,
common use agreements, or developers agreements unless specifically stated above.

Engineer assumes that no major revisions will be made to the site concept after the Owner
acceptance of the Preliminary Design documents.

Owner shall provide the Engineer any restrictions to Constructor working hours, availability
of the Site, or project phasing to be included in the plan notes.

Plan Notes and bid forms will require Constructor(s) to provide all required materials
testing.

The number of prime construction contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer
upon which the Engineer’s compensation has been established under this Agreement is one

(1).

R. Engineer’s services under the Final Design phase will be considered complete on the date when
the above deliverables have been submitted to the review agency for approval.

A1.05 Bidding Phase

A. After acceptance by Owner of the construction documents and the most recent opinion of
probable construction cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon authorization by
Owner to proceed, Engineer shall:

1.

Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work and, where
applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom Bidding Documents have
been issued, attend pre-bid conferences, if any, and receive and process Constructor
deposits or charges for the bidding documents.

Issue up to one (1) addendum as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the bidding
documents.

Provide information or assistance needed by Constructor(s) in the course of bidding the
components of project included in the Engineer’s design.

Consult with Owner as to the acceptability of subcontractors, suppliers, and other
individuals and entities proposed by prospective Constructors for those portions of the
Work as to which such acceptability is required by the bidding documents.

Page 6 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



8.

9.

If bidding documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability
of "or equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by bidders.

If necessary, attend the Bid opening, prepare Bid tabulation sheets, and assist Owner in
evaluating Bids or proposals and in assembling and awarding contracts for the Work.

Attend one (1) Park board meeting to present the bids.
Bidding services shall be provided for the project to be awarded to one (1) Constructor.

Any services provided by Engineer to re-bid will be considered Additional Services.

B. The Bidding Phase will be considered complete upon award of contract, commencement of the
Construction Phase.

A1.06 Construction Phase - Surveying (Not Included)

Al1.07 Construction Phase — Observation & Administration

A. After acceptance by Owner of the bidding or negotiating phase documents:

B. Ownershall:

1

Provide a copy of the most recent bidding documents, bid tabulations, negotiated proposals
and Contract Documents, including, Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for
the Engineer’s use in the construction coordination of the Project.

C. Engineer shall provide:

1.

2

General Administration of Construction Contract: Consult with Owner and act as Owner’s
representative as provided in the Construction Contract. The extent and limitations of the
duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer as assigned in the Construction Contract
shall not be modified, except as Engineer may otherwise agree in writing. Owner’s
instructions to Constructor will be issued through Engineer, which shall have authority to
act on behalf of Owner in dealings with Constructor to the extent provided in this
Agreement and the Construction Contract except as otherwise provided in writing.

Selecting Independent Testing Laboratory: To be provided by Constructor.

Preconstruction Meeting: Attend up to one (1) preconstruction meeting in-person with the
Owner and Constructor.

Visits to Site Observation of Construction and Construction Meetings: In connection with
observations of Constructor's Work while it is in progress:

a. Construction Meetings: Attend up to nine (9) one-hour long construction progress
meeting(s) in-person or via teleconference.

b. Site Visits for observation of construction: Make up to nine (9) one-hour visits and be
onsite full time during asphalt paving (assumed 30 hours).

Page 7 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



Meetings and visits to the Site may be made concurrently and will be conducted at
intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, to observe as an
experienced and qualified design professional the progress of Constructor’s executed
Work or to attend construction meetings. Such visits and observations by Engineer are
not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of Constructor’s Work in
progress or to involve detailed inspections of Constructor’s Work in progress beyond
the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in this Agreement and the Contract
Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and
similar methods of general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of
professional judgment. Based on information obtained during such visits, observations
or meetings, Engineer will determine in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance
with the Contract Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress
of the Work. When the number of site visits or meetings listed above is exceeded the
Engineer shall conduct site visits or attend meetings requested by the Owner as an
Additional Service.

The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site will be to enable Engineer to better carry
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer during the
Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s efforts as an
experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner a greater degree
of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the Contract
Documents and that Constructor has implemented and maintained the integrity of the
design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the
Contract Documents. Engineer shall not, during such visits or as a result of such
observations of Constructor’'s Work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over
Constructor’s Work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or responsibility for the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or
used by Constructor, for security or safety at the Site, for safety precautions and
programs incident to Constructor’s Work, nor for any failure of Constructor to comply
with Laws and Regulations applicable to Constructor’s furnishing and performing the
Work. Accordingly, Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor
nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work
in accordance with the Contract Documents.

5. Clarifications and Interpretations; Requests for Information; Field Orders; Work Change
Directives; Change Orders: lssue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract
Documents as appropriate to the orderly completion of Constructor's work. Such
clarifications and interpretations will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably
inferable from the Contract Documents. Subject to any limitations in the Contract
Documents, Engineer may issue field orders authorizing minor variations in the Work from
the requirements of the Contract Documents. Recommend change orders and work change
directives to Owner, and prepare change orders and work change directives. Major changes
to the design requested by the Owner or Constructor and approved by the Owner will be
completed as Additional Services. The assumed number of each are quantified below:

a.
b.
c.

Clarifications, Interpretations, or RFI’s: Six (6)
Field Orders or Work Change Directives: Zero (0)
Change Orders: One (1) plus a balancing change order at the end of the project.

Page 8 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



6.

10.

Shop Drawings and Samples: Review and take appropriate action in respect to Shop
Drawings and Samples and other data which Constructor is required to submit, up to two
(2) times, but only for conformance with the information given in the Contract Documents
and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole
as indicated by the Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will
not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to
safety precautions and programs incidental thereto.

Substitutes and “or-equal”: Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or “or-
equal” materials and equipment proposed by Constructor, but subject to the provisions of
this Exhibit under “Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Authorization”.

Inspections and Tests: Require such special inspections or tests of Constructor’s work as
deemed reasonably necessary, and receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests,
and approvals required by Laws and Regulations or the Contract Documents. Engineer’s
review of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified
indicate compliance with the Contract Documents and will not constitute an independent
evaluation that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply
with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the
results of such tests.

Disagreements between Owner and Constructor: Render decisions on duly submitted issues
relating to the acceptability of Constructor’'s work orthe interpretation of the requirements
of the Contract Documents pertaining to the execution, performance, or progress of
Constructor’'s Work; review each duly submitted Claim by Owner or Constructor, and either
deny such Claim in whole or in part, approve such Claim, or decline to resolve such Claim if
Engineer in its discretion concludes that to do so would be inappropriate. In renderingsuch
decisions, Engineer shall be fair and not show partiality to Owner or Constructor and shall
not be liable in connection with any decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.

Defective Work: Make recommendation to Owner to Reject Work if, on the basis of
Engineer’s observations, Engineer believes that such Work (a) is defective under the
standards set forth in the Contract Documents, (b) will not produce a completed Project
that conforms to the Contract Documents, or (c) will imperil the integrity of the design
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract
Documents.

11. Applications for Payment: Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and

qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and accompanying
supporting documentation:

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Constructor be paid. Such
recommendations of payment will be in writing and will constitute Engineer’s
representation to Owner, based on such observations and review, that, to the best of
Engineer’s knowledge, information and belief, Constructor’s Work has progressed to
the point indicated, the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents
(subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon
Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract
Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation), and the
conditions precedent to Constructor’s being entitled to such payment appear to have

Page 9 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility to observe Constructor’s Work.
In the case of unit price work, Engineer’s recommendations of payment will include
final determinations of quantities and classifications of Constructor’s Work (subject to
any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Contract Documents).

b. By recommending any payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity of
Constructor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended
to every aspect of Constructor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of
the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in this Agreement
and the Contract Documents. Neither Engineer’s review of Constructor’s Work for the
purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment
including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to supervise, direct, or
control Constructor's Work in progress or for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident
thereto, or Constructor's compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to
Constructor’s furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose responsibility
on Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes
Constructor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or to determine
that title to any portion of the Work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to
Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that
there may not be other matters at issue between Owner and Constructor that might
affect the amount that should be paid.

c. Itis assumed that the Engineer will complete up to three (3) applications for payment
to be submitted to the Owner monthly.

12. Constructor’s Completion Documents: Receive and review schedules, guarantees, bonds,
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Contract Documents, certificates
of inspection, tests and approvals, Shop Drawings, Samples and other data approved as
provided under “Shop Drawings and Samples”, and transmit the annotated record
documents which are to be assembled by Constructor in accordance with the Contract
Documents to obtain final payment. The extent of such review of record documents shall
be to check that Constructor has submitted all documents.

13. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work: Conduct one (1) visit to prepare Constructor’s
punch list and conduct one (1) final visit to determine if the completed Work of Constructor
is acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in writing, final payment to Constructor.
Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, Engineer shall also provide a “Final
Review and Acceptance” that the Work is acceptable (subject to the provisions of
“Applications for Payment”) to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief
and based on the extent of the services provided by Engineer under this Agreement.

D. Duration of Construction Phase: The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the
Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof for which the Engineer provided services
and will terminate upon written recommendation by Owner for final payment to Constructor. If
the Project involves more than one prime contract as indicated in Final Design Phase, then
Construction Phase services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate
contracts. Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation if Construction Phase

services are required after the original date for completion and readiness for final payment of
Page 10 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



Constructor as set forth in the Construction Contract, or if the number of prime contracts exceeds
the specified number in the Final Design Phase.

Limitation of Responsibilities: Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any
Constructor, Subcontractor or Supplier, or other individuals or entities performing or furnishing
any of the Work, for safety or security at the Site, or for safety precautions and programs incident
to Constructor's Work, during the Construction Phase or otherwise. Engineer shall not be
responsible for the failure of any Constructor to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with
the Contract Documents.

A1.08 Post-Construction Phase (Not Included)

PART 2 — ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A2.01

A.

Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Authorization

If requested or authorized by Owner, Engineer shall furnish or obtain from others Additional
Services of the types listed below. Engineer shall proceed with such Additional Services with the
understanding that the Engineer will be paid hourly for such services at the Engineer’s standard
hourly rates unless an agreement has been reached between the parties for other methods of
payment. Engineer shall cease performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of
written notice from Owner.

1. Services in addition to those defined under Basic Services including but not limited to: study
and report phase services, marketing exhibits or graphical renderings, environmental
studies, cultural/archeological studies, traffic impact analysis, permitting, permit
application materials, requests for zoning change or any deviation or variance from local
standards or zoning regulations, or any entitlements services such as lot modifications,
platting, easements, etc.

2. Design services in addition to those defined under Basic Services including but not limited
to: utilities, lighting, fencing, landscape, stormwater scoping sheet, stormwater
management plan or waiver request, stormwater treatment or sediment removal systems,
structural design including but not limited to foundations and retaining walls, mechanical
engineering services or pumping systems, geotechnical engineering or services to aid in the
completion of their recommendations, or design of offsite improvements.

3. Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing other than
specified under Basic Services.

4.  Preparation or revision of construction documents or design changes after the final design
phase or during construction.

5. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under
Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in connection with
the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and impact statements;
review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Project of any such
statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project.

Page 11 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests or
investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or
other information furnished by Owner or others.

Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions
of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Project’s design requirements,
including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, character of construction, method
of financing, or Owner’s schedule or coordination causing unreasonable delay in the orderly
and sequential progress of the Engineer’s services; and revising previously accepted studies,
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Contract Documents when such revisions are required
by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to
any other causes beyond Engineer’s control.

Redesign or rebidding services requested to meet the Owner’s construction budget after
approval of the Final Design phase of the Project.

Services resulting from Owner’s or Constructor’s request to modify previously approved
deliverables or to evaluate additional alternative solutions beyond those agreed to under
Basic Services.

Services required as a result of Owner’'s providing incomplete or incorrect Project
information to Engineer.

Services resulting from conflicting direction from the Owner or from multiple
representatives of the Owner.

Services provided beyond the dates specified in the Engineer’s original schedule.

Services required to provide copies of drawings, reports, specifications and other necessary
information to the Owner and other consultants in a format other than PDF or paper copy
or to other consultants in a format other than PDF or paper copy.

Providing renderings, models or electronic grading files or releases for Owner's or
Constructor’s use, including services in support of building information modeling or civil
integrated management, other than specified under Basic Services.

Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration
of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of financial feasibility
studies (such as those that include projections of output capacity, utility project rates,
project market demand, or project revenues) and cash flow analyses, rate schedules, and
appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for the Project; evaluating processes available
for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining process licensing; detailed quantity surveys
of materials, equipment, and labor; and audits or inventories required in connection with
construction performed or furnished by Owner.

Furnishing services of Consultants for other than provided under Basic Services.

Providing data or services that were to be provided by the Owner, Constructor, or others.

Page 12 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

Services attributable to more prime construction Constructors than specified under Basic
Services.

Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by Constructors
other than the principal prime Constructor, and administering Owner’s contract for such
services.

Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent
review processes, including, but not limited to, construction management, cost estimating,
project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review requested by Owner or
Constructor; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies, reports,
Drawings, Specifications, or other Bidding Documents as a result of such review processes.

Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents) or Construction Contract Documents for alternate
bids or cost estimates requested by Owner or Constructor for the Work or a portion thereof
other than provided under Basic Services.

Assistance in connection with Bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for
construction, materials, equipment, or services or making revisions to drawings for “or
equal” items or bid negotiations.

Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate the
content of Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Constructor.

Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and
readiness for final payment of Constructor.

Modifying final approved design or digital files as may be required for Owner’s or
Constructor’s use during construction.

Preparing Record Drawings showing appropriate record information based on Project
annotated record documents received from Constructor, and furnishing such Record
Drawings to Owner other than provided under Basic Services.

Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site,
and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility
companies, and other reliable sources.

Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of
Record Drawing content obtained from Constructor, Owner, utility companies, and other
sources.

Preparation of operation, maintenance, or staffing manuals.

Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing).

Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Project equipment
and systems.

Page 13 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



A2.02

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the operation
and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related recordkeeping.

Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner or Constructor in any
litigation, arbitration, claim, dispute resolution, or other legal or administrative proceeding
involving the Project.

Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Constructor to perform its work; any
type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests
in real property; and providing other special field surveys (except as agreed to under Basic
Services).

Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or
certifications requested by Owner or Constructor.

Services required during any correction period, or with respect to monitoring Constructor’s
compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in the Construction Contract (except
as agreed to under Basic Services).

Other services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for in this
Agreement.

Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Authorization

Engineer shall advise Owner that the Engineer is performing or furnishing the Additional Services
of the types listed below. For such Additional Services, Engineer need not request or obtain specific
advance authorization from Owner. Engineer shall proceed with such Additional Services with the
understanding that the Engineer will be paid hourly for such services at the Engineer’s standard
hourly rates unless an agreement has been reached between the parties for other methods of
payment. Engineer shall cease performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of
written notice from Owner.

Attending meetings requested by Owner or Constructor in addition to those specified as
Basic Services.

Services in connection with work change directives and change orders to reflect changes
requested by Owner or Constructor.

Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance
of substitute materials or equipment other than “or-equal” items; services after beginning
the Bidding Phase of the Construction Documents in evaluating and determining the
acceptability of a proposed "or equal” or substitution which is found to be inappropriate for
the Project; evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed "or equals"
or substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction Contract.

Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct
or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages.

Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any Constituent
of Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or acts of God

Page 14 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



10.

endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes during construction,
(d) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, (e) acceleration of the
progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours, or (f) default by
Constructor.

Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection with
any partial utilization of any part of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion.

Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFls),
Change Proposals, or other demands from Constructor or others in connection with the
Work, or an excessive number of RFls, Change Proposals, or demands.

Services during the Construction Phase rendered after the original date for completion of
the Work referred to in this Agreement.

Reviewing a Shop Drawing more than two (2) times, as a result of repeated inadequate
submissions by Constructor.

While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or
Constructor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that
exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by federal, state, or local safety
authorities for similar construction sites.

Page 15 of 15
Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services



13an§eazuyse

[kl - RESTROOMS {8+  POTABLE WATER \

SITE PLAN

GENERAL 4.
SIBLEY PARK

BISMARCK, D

- - - .{l\("l\‘ -
BONCARES
MMPHITHEATER ™=\ o e

4{'.‘.
R0y,
L/
\

/e
"Bley Iotogy,,

CAMPSITE NUMBER “sii SAND VOLLEYBALL \

PICNIC SHELTER w=>om BOAT RAMP k
SHOWER/RESTROOM <@ DUMP STATION \
RECYCLESITE ..o DISC GOLF COURSE T Syos

Aluminum 2ad Plastic )
reeseens TRAIL " P

AUPHITHEATER N

Project Limits

Exhibit A.1



